
 

June 21, 2024 

 

Zoning Board of Adjustments 

City of Portsmouth 

1 Junkins Avenue 

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 

RE:   Board of Adjustments Hearing June 25, 2024 

Petitioners:  Liam Hoare and Reece C. Green 

Property:  189 Wibird Street 

Assessors Map 133, Lot 51 

Zoning District:  General Residence A 

Description:  Construction 1,366 square foot 3.5-story addition and decks  

Request:  Variance to allow 8.5’ right yard where 10 feet is required (Section 10.521), 

and 2) allow nonconforming structure to be enlarged without conforming to the 

requirements of the ordinance (Section 10.321).   

Dear Board Members:   

My wife Kathy and I have lived at 199 Wibird Street for 27 years, and are direct abutters to the 

applicant’s parcel.  Our house is to the south, the direction in which they are seeking zoning relief 

from setback requirements.  The applicant reached out to us proactively about their plans, and I have 

communicated my concerns regarding items that will have a direct impact on our adjacent residence.  

The applicant’s site is unique and will be difficult to develop due to the grade of the adjacent sites and 

significant flooding that the lot currently experiences (see photos attached).  If the proposed drainage 

functions as intended, it will be an improvement for the neighborhood.   

The applicant has gone to great lengths to reach out and address our concerns.  Therefore, I am okay 

with them encroaching on the 10’ side setback and expanding the existing nonconforming structure, 

given the concessions that have been agreed to.  An overview of my concerns and the applicant 

remedies are summarized below.   

1. One of the most attractive features of the neighborhood between Union and Wibird Streets is the 

collective green space and canopy of trees that is shared by all the rear yards.  The applicant’s site 

at 189 Wibird Street experiences significant flooding/ponding several times annually and will 

require a fairly complex drainage system that ties into the city’s storm drains on either Wibird or 

Union Street.  I am concerned about the impact that the trenching and gravel required for drainage 

may have on the abutting trees that provide shade and privacy to our rear yards, as the area 

requiring drainage is loaded with tree roots.  Some of the neighboring trees are massive and very 

old.  If any of the neighboring trees die and/or fall due to compromised root systems resulting 

from the new construction and drainage, it would be an expense and danger for the adjacent 

homeowners.  The applicant has assured me that their site contractor will make an effort to 

minimally impact the existing tree roots.   

2. The applicant’s home design includes a garage underneath the proposed addition.  Given that the 

existing site is 4+/- feet below the grade of my driveway and the proposed 10’ high basement 

garage will lower their grade an additional 5-6 feet, a steep slope will be created between the two 

lots.  I am concerned about erosion of my existing driveway and garage, and the creation of a long 

and steep slope between the two properties.  I expressed my concern that the original home design 

may result in dangerous and unstable slope.  The applicant has agreed to backfill the south side of 

the garage between the two lots to minimize the slope and diminish the massing of the new 

addition.      
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3. The original home design included a total of 13 new windows (in addition to 7 existing windows) 

along the south side of the residence.  Given that the applicant is requesting a variance along our 

property line, I had requested that they reduce the number of windows, specifically the 6 double 

hung 1st floor windows, to help in preserving some of the privacy that we currently enjoy.  The 

applicant has provided us with revised elevation plans that remove three of the 1st floor’s double 

hung windows.   

4. The site plan and home design drawings provided do not illustrate of the any outside mechanical 

systems, such as heat/pump condensing units which would be within the 10’ setback if placed on 

the south side of the residence.  The applicant has provided us with written confirmation that the 

condensing units will be placed at the rear (east) of the house and not along the south side of the 

residence.   

I have attached some photos of the slope (between 189 and 199 Wibird), as well as the flooding at 

189 Wibird Street in recent years to help illustrate the various points highlighted above.  As 

previously noted, with the various concessions agreed to by the applicant, I am okay if the Board of 

Adjustments decides to grant zoning relief.   

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or comments.   

 

Sincerely,  

 
Stephen J. Bergeron  

199 Wibird Street 

(603) 502-6339 

  



Exhibit – View of grade change/slope between 189 and 199 Wibird St. 

 

  



Exhibit – Photos of 189 Wibird Street Rear Yard Following Different Periods of  

Heavy Rains.  View of grade change/slope between 189 and 199 Wibird St. 
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